
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 1 of 13 

  
 
 

  

 
Performance Committee 

Held on 28 September 2023 
0900-1100hrs via MS Teams 

[Chair:  Gavin Robert, Non-executive Director] 
                                                          
                                               M I N U T E S 
 
Present    

Mr G Robert (Chair) GR Non-executive Director 

Ms C Conquest CC Non-executive Director  

Ms D Leacock DL Associate Non-executive Director 

Mr T Glenn TG Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance and Commercial Officer 

Mr H McEnroe HMc Chief Operating Officer 

Mrs E Midlane EM Chief Executive 

Ms O Monkhouse OM Director of Workforce & Organisational Development 

Mr A Raynes AR Chief Information Officer 

Mrs M Screaton MS Chief Nurse 

Dr I Smith IS Medical Director 

   

In Attendance   

Ms S Bullivant SB Public Governor, Observer 

Mrs A Colling AC Executive Assistant (Minutes) 

Mr T Collins TC Public Governor, Observer 

Mrs A Jarvis AJ Trust Secretary 

Mr S Rackley SR Director of Estates & Facilities 

   

In attendance for Item 5: Thoracic Divisional Presentation 

Ms Z Robinson ZR Divisional Operational Director, Thoracic &  Ambulatory 

   

Apologies   

Mr B Davidson BD Public Governor, Observer 

Mrs S Harrison SH Deputy Chief Finance Officer 

Mrs W Walker WW Deputy Chief Operating Officer 

 
[Note: Minutes in order of discussion, which may not be in Agenda order] 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

 
1 

 
WELCOME, APOLOGIES AND OPENING REMARKS 

  

23/249 The Chair welcomed all to the meeting.  
 

  

 
2 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 
 

23/250 
 
 

There is a requirement that Board members raise any specific declarations 
if these arise during discussions.  No specific conflicts were identified in 

  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 2 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

relation to matters on the agenda.   A summary of standing declarations of 
interests are appended to these minutes.   

 
5 

 
DIVISIONAL PRESENTATION: Thoracic 

  

23/251 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0940hrs 
ZR left 

 
Received: Divisional presentation from Thoracic 
 
Reported: The Committee welcomed Zoe Robinson, Divisional Operational 
Director for Thoracic and Ambulatory Division. 
 
Discussion: 
The Committee received a presentation from Zoe Robinson, Divisional 
Operations Director, on performance of the Thoracic and Ambulatory Care 
Division. After a year of steady decline, there has been slow progress in 
RTT since Spring this year which now stands at 74% although still some 
way below pre-COVID levels of 97%. The number of those waiting over 18 
weeks has begun to decrease while those waiting over 30 weeks remains 
relatively stable. Industrial action has led to a significant volume of lost 
activity. The presentation covered substantial detail on different areas of 
activity. The Committee received considerable assurance as to the work 
being done to improve performance and expand elective capacity. This 
includes an external review of RSSC to address inefficient processes and 
increase capacity, review of missed appointments/short-notice 
cancellations, improved processes to increase the available bed base, 
increased use of Patient Initiated Follow Up (PIFU), additional oversight of 
cancer performance (which is a particular focus for the Division) and 
thoughtful implementation of the Workforce Strategy. It is clear that 
improvement depends not on any one silver bullet, but on identifying and 
managing a wide range of focused actions across the many different 
activities of the Division. The Committee thanked Zoe for an excellent and 
informative presentation. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the Thoracic divisional 
presentation and update. 

  

 
3 

 
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 31 August 2023 

  

23/252 
 

 
Approved: The Performance Committee approved the minutes of 31 
August 2023 meeting and authorised for signature by the Chair as a true 
record 

 
Chair 

 
28.09.23 

 
4.1 

 
TIME PLAN OF TODAY’S AGENDA ITEMS 

  

23/253  
It was agreed to follow the agenda as planned.   

  

4.2 ACTION CHECKLIST   

23/254 The Committee reviewed the Action Checklist and updates were noted.   

 
4.2.1 

 
Ref. 23/202 Mandatory Training 

  

23/255 Received: In response to a previous query, the Committee received an 
update on the process for agreeing mandatory and ‘essential for role’ 
training and opportunities being considered to risk assess and optimise 
delivery. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 3 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

Reported:  MS 
Highlighted that there are 11 subjects to be covered under Government  
Core Skills Framework (mandatory); then a set of skills classed as local 
mandatory and role specific and this part of the training could be assessed 
on a need and delivery basis.  Access to mandatory training has been 
reviewed to make it more user friendly and accessible.  The team has 
responded well in reviewing this area. 
 
Discussed:  
CC asked when the Committee would receive feedback on the review of 
training? 
MS and OM agreed that 6 months would be a fair timeline.  MS confirmed 
that it is on the Workforce Committee Agenda and GR and CC were happy 
for this to be taken forward and covered by the Workforce Committee in 
future. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the update on mandatory 
training. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work-
force 
Cttee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30.11.23 

 
IN YEAR PERFORMANCE & PROJECTIONS 

 
6 

 
REVIEW OF THE BOARD ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK (BAF) 

  

23/256 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Received: A summary of the BAF risks and mitigations in place for risks 
above target.  A copy of the BAF tracker report was attached. 

 
Reported:  AJ 
Highlighted the highest rated risks being: 
Risk 678 Waiting List Management 
Risk 3261 Industrial Action 
 
Discussion:  
CC referred to Risk 678 and anticipated cost of £660k and asked what does 
this cover? 
HMc advised that these are the assumed costs to deliver activity by putting 
on  additional capacity for weekend and evening work; this involves paying 
enhanced rates of pay for all staff groups involved.  
TG noted that part of this cost will be covered by ERF payment.  He noted 
national discussion/plans by Julian Kelly on additional payments in certain 
areas to expand capacity and reduce waiting list times for patients. 
 
CC referred to Risk 678 and gaps in assurance  and asked when will the 
Committee see a trajectory to achieve RTT and achieve 108% activity? 
HMc advised that there has not been an objective set in the national 
planning work and this work needs to be done before a trajectory can be 
set.  This work is in progress with a first draft expected early January. 
 
CC referred to Risk 1021 Potential for cyber breach and data loss and gaps 
in assurance.  How can this be covered? 
AR updated on discussions at system and regional level for this Senior 
Cyber Analyst core skill set.   
 
CC referred to Risk 3009 Continuity of supply of consumable or service 
failure where gaps in assurance refers to Part 1, which was not attached.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.10.23 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 4 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

TG will review this outside of the meeting. 

 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the review of BAF. 

 
7 

 
PAPWORTH INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT (PIPR) 

  

23/257 Received: PIPR for M05 August 2023.  
Reported: TG  
Summarised the position as ‘red’, which comprised: 

• Four ‘red’ domains: Safe, Effective, Responsive, and People 
Management & Culture. 

• Two ‘amber’ domains: Caring and Finance 
 

PIPR summary 
Overall rating in month is ‘Red’.  
Currently a challenging environment in the NHS with both Consultant and 
Junior Doctor strikes taking place in August.  This is causing a negative 
impact on staff morale in all staff groups affected.   
Following discussion last month, the PIPR measurement denominator for 
theatre utilisation has changed to a ‘measure of total open capacity’. 
 
Discussion: each sector as noted below. 

  

23/258 Safe (Red): MS 
CC requested a spotlight on medication errors causing harm.  MS will 
provide this. 
 
DL asked how we were planning to transition to the Patient Safety Incident 
Response Framework (PSIRF).  MS explained this is a major piece of work 
with extensive training undertaken by those staff involved.  It is likely to 
come into place on 1 April 2024.   
Chair suggested an optional  briefing on the new PSIR) for NEDs – to be led 
by Q&R.  MS to take this forward. 

 
MS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MS 

 
26.10.23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.10.23 

23/259 Caring (Amber): MS 
It was noted that one of five complaints was responded to outside the 
agreed timescale, which moved this section to Amber. 
CC asked for further clarification on why patients might wish to formally 
complain and yet some complaints are not upheld.  MS explained the many 
scenarios which might affect this adding that the Trust is always open to 
learning and that good communication with complainants is vital.   

  

23/260 
 
 

Effective (Red): HMc  
It was confirmed that bed occupancy is measured against the 
commissioned capacity and not opened capacity. While there had been a 
drop in occupancy in real terms in CCA, the change in denominator explains 
the particularly steep drop this month. This will require further scrutiny over 
coming months. 
Cardiac surgery mortality at 3.2% is over the upper 3% limit, and this will be 
investigated. 
Performance in terms of cath lab utilisation is good.   
The continued high theatre utilisation was welcomed. 
DL referred to CCA bed occupancy and discharge planning and asked to 
what the terms ‘’Plan A’ patient and ‘Golden’ patient referred. MS explained 
the meaning of both terms. 

  

23/261 Responsive (Red): HMc  
The Trust continues to perform well on RTT relative to other trusts and 
referred to graphs in PIPR on historic trends and metrics. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 5 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

 
GR asked what is RPH doing to diagnose and treat cancer patients sooner 
to cut their waiting times? HMc will come back with this information. 
 
For clarity, GR asked for acronyms noted on the Cancer slide (ENH, CTNB 
etc), to be defined and updated in the PIPR version to next Board.   
 
HMc explained the work being done within the Diagnostics Validation 
Project. 
 

 
HMc 
 
 
 
HMc 

 
26.10.23 
 
 
 
5.10.23 
Board 

23/262 
 
 

People Management & Culture (Red) OM 
No items were raised. 
 

  

23/263 Finance (Amber):  
This will be covered under Item 8.1 Financial Report. 
 

  

 
 

Integrated Care System (ICS) 
This is included for information purposes and to understand how the system 
is performing. 

  

  
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the PIPR update for M05 
August 2023/24 

  

 
9.1 

 
ACTIVITY RESTORATION 

  

23/264 Received: Update report to Month 5, August 2023.  The report provides an 
oversight of activity numbers against the following benchmarks: 

1. 2019/20 activity; and 
2. The NHSE c108% of 2019/20 activity target for the Trust. 

 
Reported: HMc 
Going forward, this section will be incorporated into PIPR. HMc talked to 
key headlines in the report. 
 
Discussion 
GR is keen to see a clearer picture on improvement in activity recovery, not 
masked by industrial action. HMc gave some explanation of this and can 
include this analysis on activity in future reporting. 
TG referred to ‘PIPR Effective’ on Day Case and Inpatient performance by 
speciality which saw activity increases, notwithstanding strike days. 
HMc and TG clarified that we are still working to 108% 2019/20 activity. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the update on Activity 
Restoration. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HMc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.10.23 

 
9.4 

 
PROTECTING AND EXPANDING ELECTIVE CAPACITY 

  

23/265  
Received: Following the issue of the Protecting and Expanding Elective 
Capacity letter from Sir James Mackey and Prof Tim Briggs, the Committee 
is requested to review the checklist presented to assure plans to deliver 
against a set of activities that will drive outpatient recovery at pace. 
 
Reported: HMc 
This is the 2nd of two letters received from Jim Mackey’s office on protecting 
and expanding elective capacity.  Key areas are outpatient transformation 

  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 6 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

programme and validation on those areas of care.  The Trust has been 
noted by NHSE as an exemplar in its work and asked to support others. 
HMc highlighted the risk areas for the Trusts as noted in the letter. 
 
This has been discussed with EM (CEO) and John Wallwork (Chairman) to 
approve sign off on behalf of the Board, which is required by 30 September. 
 
Discussion: 
CC expressed  concern that by 30 September deadline, it will not have been 
seen fully by all Board members.  As it was received in early August, she 
felt it could have been circulated to the full Board by email at that point.  EM 
acknowledged the comments and how this could be managed better in 
future. 
HMc has clarified with NHSE the Board sign-off requirements where 
discussion at Board sub-Cttee and sight by CEO and Chairman is sufficient. 
 
CC was concerned on the amber ratings and where some areas do not 
have RAG ratings.  She also questioned whether there should be clearer  
assurance on some replies such as GIRFT.  HMc explained that some of 
our specialist services are not included in GIRFT programs and that we are 
liaising with Prof Briggs directly on this. 
 
GR commented that the nuanced response to the checklist, identifying 
areas that are amber rather than green seems to be the right approach. 
  
AJ confirmed that the submission will be circulated to the October Board 
meeting for information. 
*See note added at Item 16 Any Other Business. 
 
Noted:  The Committee noted the content of the checklist and noted its 
approval/sign-off by CEO and Chairman and recommended it for approval. 
 

9.2 STA CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME   

23/266 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Received: An update on Key Performance Indicators for the period 31 
August to 28 September 2023. 
 
Reported: EM gave some context and confirmed that HMc reports weekly 
into the Executive Directors meeting; following these discussions the 
Executive focussed on the Culture Workstream and how this could be 
approached differently to enable progress.   
HMc referred to the report and areas of focus in detail. HMc shared 
dashboards which help to clarify the narrative in the report and talked 
through these slides (the slide deck was emailed to the Committee during 
the meeting). 
 
Discussion: 
MS talked about the challenge to maintain the 36 CCA beds.  She also 
referred to quality & safety and safer staffing and the fragility of staff 
affected by vacancies and staff sickness; along with mitigations to improve 
this. She reiterated how all four domains are inter-related (performance, 
quality & safety, culture and divisional leadership) and lack of progress in 
one domain affects progress of other domains. 
 
OM confirmed that this report will be discussed in detail at Workforce 
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 7 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

JW joined DL was concerned on the culture domain and the work still required to 
embed this.  She had visited CCA last week and staff did not seem aware of 
the improvement programme.  How can we ensure all colleagues are aware 
of their roles in this process so that we can work effectively to change the 
culture? 
 
HMc noted the in-depth discussion by Executives on culture and leadership, 
the delving into the detail of this and how to target these areas.  These 
actions will be notified to Committee in future reporting. 
 
GR thanked HMc for following up on Committee queries from the last 
meeting. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee the update and discussion on STA 
Continuous Improvement Programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HMc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.10.23 

 
9.3 

 
ELECTIVE CARE PRIORITIES 2023/24 

  

23/267  
Reported: HMc – verbal update during earlier discussions.  A formal 
quarterly update will come to the November meeting. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the update. 

  

 
9.5 

 
CONSOLIDATION OF OPERATIONAL REPORTING 

  

23/268  
Received: Following discussion at previous meetings, it was suggested to 
consolidate operational reporting, with a revised format proposed to the 
Committee. 
 
Reported: HMc 
 
Noted:  The Committee agreed to progress with the proposals as outlined 
for reporting to the October meeting. 

  

 
10 

 
ACCESS & DATA QUALITY REPORT (bi-monthly) 

  

  
Covered at Item 9.5 – in future this report will be incorporated into PIPR. 

  

 
8.1 

 
FINANCIAL REPORT – Month 5 2023/24 

  

23/269 
 
 
 
 

Received: Financial Report which provides oversight of the Trust’s financial 
position as at month 5, 2023/24. 
 
Reported: TG summarised: 

• A strong financial performance with an in-month surplus of just under 
£100k. He noted the pay upturn in last 4 months, reflecting pay awards 
landing in consecutive months. 

• BPPC progress continues to be strong. 

• Capital programme – there has been a deep dive into the medical 
equipment capital plan and assurances received of their forecast 
outline.  Deep dives on Estates and Digital Divisions are scheduled in 
the next two weeks. 

• Following these deep dives and where planned expenditure may not be 
possible in this financial year, there is a Plan B to bring in other items to 
ensure best use of 23/24 capital budget. 

  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 8 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

Discussion: No  items were raised. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the financial position. 

 
8.2 

 
A BRIDGE TO EXCELLENCE (CIP) REPORT: Month 5 2023/24 

  

23/270 Received: Month 5 2023/24 summary. 
Reported: TG.   
Discussion:  This was covered under Item 8.1 Financial Position. 
The CIP plan is on track and divisional meetings planned with Cardiology 
and Thoracic to deep dive into those areas (30 Oct and 1 Nov respectively).   
 
DL was concerned about Cardiology and Thoracic and would value clarity 
on this following the deep dive meetings.  TG is confident that with work in 
hand the CIP plan can be delivered in these areas. 
 
Noted: The Performance Committee noted the update on CIP. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TG 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30.11.23 

 
FUTURE PLANNING 

 
11 

 
INVESTMENT GROUP – Chair’s Report 

  

23/271 Received: Chair’s verbal update summarising the meeting held on 27 
September 2023. 
 
Reported: TG 
The capital planning budget was covered in discussions under the financial 
report. 
 
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the update from the Investment 
Group. 

  

 
12 

 
QUARTERLY UPDATE REPORTS 

  

  
No items to report.  

  

 

13 
 
ADHOC REPORTS 

  

13.1 
 

 
2024/25 OPERATIONAL PLANNING APPROACH 

  

23/272  
Received:  A paper setting out the Trust’s intended approach to operational 
planning for 2024/25 and provide a high-level financial envelope based on 
the current expectations. 
 
Reported: TG 
Explained the planning process which is started early by Trust.  The report 
outlines the timeline over the next few months for work with divisions and 
workforce planning.  National guidance is due in December, and we will 
adjust the plan accordingly when this is received. 
 
Discussion:  
CC thanked TG for sight of this informative forward plan. 
HMc noted the high quality of the plan and the engagement of Divisions with 
this forward planning. 
 
Noted:  The Committee noted the update. 

  



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 9 of 13 

Agenda 
Item 

 Action 
by 
Whom 

Date 

 
14 

 
ISSUES FOR ESCALATION TO OTHER COMMITTEES 

  

 No issues were raised for escalation.    

 
15.1 

 
COMMITTEE FORWARD PLANNER 

  

23/2 Received:  The updated Forward Planner. 
Reported: by AJ.   
Noted:  The Performance Committee noted the Committee Forward 
Planner. 

  

 
15.2 

 
REVIEW OF MEETING AGENDA & OBJECTIVES 

  

23/273 Verbal: Committee agreed that the agenda and objectives had been met; 
the Chair thanked all for their discussion and apologised for overrunning on 
time. 

  

15.3 BAF end of meeting wrap-up   

23/2 None identified.   

15.4 Emerging Risks   

23/2 Covered in earlier discussions.   

    

16 ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

23/274 The Chairman reiterated that he had joined the meeting to ensure the 
Committee’s full discussion at Item 9.4 Protecting and Expanding Elective 
Capacity.  GR confirmed the Committee was happy to recommend sign-off 
of the submission.  JW confirmed this will be presented and ratified at the 5 
October Board meeting. 

  

  
FUTURE MEETING DATES 

  

 

023 Time Venue Divisional presentation Apols rec’d 

31 August 0900-1100hrs MS Teams -  

28 September 0900-1100hrs MS Teams Respiratory  

26 October 0900-1100hrs MS Teams - C Conquest 

30 November 0900-1100hrs MS Teams Radiology/Imaging  

21 December 0900-1100hrs MS Teams -  

The meeting finished 1107hrs. 

 
Date: 26 October 2023 

 
Royal Papworth Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 Performance Committee Meeting held on 28 September 2023 
 
Abbreviations and Acronyms 
 
BAF  Board Assurance Framework 
BPPC   Better Payment Practice Code 
CCA  Critical Care Area 
CIP  Cost Improvement Programme 
CTNB  Computed Tomography-guided Transthoracic Needle Biopsy 
ENH  East & North Herts NHS FT 
ERF  Emergency Recovery Fund 
GIRFT  Get It Right First Time 
IA  Industrial Action 
NHSE  NHS England 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 10 of 13 

PIFU  Patient Initiated Follow UP 
PSIRF  Patient Safety Incident Response Framework 
Q&R  Quality & Risk Committee 
RSSC  Respiratory Support & Sleep Centre 
RTT  Referral to Treatment 
STA  Surgery, Transplant, Anaesthetics Division 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 11 of 13 

 

 
 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 12 of 13 

 



 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Performance Committee 28 September 2023 - Minutes                               Page 13 of 13 

 

 


